Agenda - Economy, Infrastructure and Skills

Committee

Meeting Venue: For further information contact:
Committee Room 2 - Senedd Robert Donovan

Meeting date: 21 November 2019 Committee Clerk

Meeting time: 09.25 0300 200 6565

SeneddEIS@assembly.wales

Private pre-meeting
(09.25-09.30)

Private 09.30 - 10.30

1  Briefing on the Welsh Government Draft National Development

Framework 2020-2040

(09.30-10.30) (Pages 1 - 34)
Neil Hemington, Head of Planning, Welsh Government

Jonni Tomos, Senior Planning Manager, Welsh Government

Gareth Hall, Senior Planning Manager, Welsh Government

Attached Documents:
EIS(5)-30-19(P1) EIS Scrutiny of Draft NDF-Research Briefing
EIS(5)-30-19(P2) General Research Briefing on Draft NDF

Break
(10.30-10.45)

fv- Cynulliad National
/ Cenedlaethol  Assembly for

Cymru Wales



Public 10.45 - 12.50

3.1

Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of

interest
(10.45)

Paper(s) to note
(10.45)

Letter from Chair to Transport for Wales re Rolling stock
(Pages 35 - 36)

Attached Documents:

EIS(5)-30-19(P3) Letter from Chair to Transport for Wales re rolling stock

Draft National Development Framework for Wales 2020-2040 -

Transport
(10.45-11.45)
Ellen Jones, Senior Policy Officer, Sustrans Cymru

Mark Simmonds, Head of Policy and External Affairs, British Ports Association

Break
(11.45-11.50)

Draft National Development Framework for Wales 2020-2040 -

UK2070 Commission
(11.50-12.50) (Pages 37 - 48)

Professor Vincent Goodstadt, UK2070 Commission



Attached Documents:
EIS(5)-30-19(P4) Evidence from Professor Goodstadt
EIS(5)-30-19(P4A) Further evidence from Professor Goodstadt

Motion under Standing Order 17.42 (vi) to resolve to exclude the

public from item 7

Scoping Paper: Degree Apprenticeships
(12.50-13.05) (Pages 49 - 54)

Attached Documents:

EIS(5)-30-19(P5) Scoping Paper: Degree Apprenticeships



Agenda ltem 1

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1



National Assembly for Wales
Senedd Research

Draft National

Development Framework
Research Briefing

October 2019

Pack Page 17WWW.assemny.waIes/resea rch



http://www.assembly.wales/research

National Assembly for Wales
Senedd Research

The National Assembly for Wales is the
democratically elected pody that represents
the interests of Wales and its people, makes

laws for Wales, agrees Welsh taxes and holds Draft National
the Welsh Government to account. Development Framework
Research Briefing

October 2019

Author:
Elfyn Henderson

An electronic copy of this document can be found on the National Assembly
website: www.assembly.wales/research

Copies of this document can also be obtained in accessible formats including
Braille, large print, audio or hard copy from:

Senedd Research

National Assembly for Wales
Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

CF991NA

Tel: 0300 200 6328

Email: EIfyn.Henderson@Assembly.Wales

Twitter: @SeneddResearch

Blog: SeneddResearch.blog

LinkedIn: Senedd Research, National Assembly for Wales

© National Assembly for Wales Commission Copyright 2019

The text of this document may be reproduced free of charge in any format or
medium providing that it is reproduced accurately and not used in a misleading
or derogatory context. The material must be acknowledged as copyright of

the National Assembly for Wales Commission and the title of the document ’F’f www.assembly.wales/research

specified.



http://www.assembly.wales/research
mailto:Elfyn.Henderson%40Assembly.Wales?subject=
http://www.twitter.com/@SeneddResearch
http://SeneddResearch.blog
https://www.linkedin.com/company/senedd-research-national-assembly-for-wales

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Contents

INEFOAUGCTION ... eeeeeccceeeeeecccnneeeeecseneeeeeessssssasessssssssasssssssssnasesssssnns 1

(232 Ted [(s [ o171 4 T« /SN 2
PUIPOSE Of the NDF ...ttt ettt 2
DeVveloping the NDF ...ttt 3

NDF preferred option.............eeeceeccrerccceccnenecsneccssanessnssesasessassessanes &

ViSioN @Nd OBJECHIVES.......cooiieeee et 4
Preferred OPLION ...ttt 5
Committee scrutiny of the preferred option..........cuccvceeecccnneennee 8

2y,
QO
O
>
o
Q

Q
D
o
(o]

Draft NDF ........ciiiiiiiiniennnennninnennecnsessseesscsssessessssessssssssssssassssessss 11

Draft NDF dOCUMENT ..ot 1
Chapter 3 - NDF OULCOMIES ... sneessnene e 12
Chapter 4 - Spatial Strategy (PoliCies T-15) ... 13
Chapter 5 - The regions (POlICIES 16-33).......coocecoeeeeeeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 23

Integrated Sustainability APPraiSal ... 29

Habitats Regulations ASSESSMENTt ..., 30

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Introduction

The Welsh Government is consulting on its first draft National Development
Framework (NDF) for Wales. The NDF is a statutory requirement and will set out
the Welsh Government's strategy for addressing its national priorities through the
planning system. The final NDF is due to be published in September 2020.

The process for developing the NDF began in 2016 and consists of a number of key
stages. This briefing aims to summarise events to date by providing an overview of:

= the process for developing the NDF;
= the NDF preferred option, published in April 2018;

=  Assembly Committee scrutiny of the NDF preferred option; and

= the draft NDF, published in August 2019.



https://gov.wales/draft-national-development-framework
https://gov.wales/draft-national-development-framework

0z abed )oed

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Background

The Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (the Planning Act) introduced two new levels of
development plan, which will sit above existing Local Development Plans (LDPs):

= a NDF covering the whole of Wales; and
= Strategic Development Plans (SDPs) covering distinct regions.

The NDF will set out the Welsh Government’s policies on development and
land use in a spatial context. It will set out a 20 year land use framework and be
reviewed at least every five years.

Unlike its predecessor, the Wales Spatial Plan, the NDF will have development plan
status. This means that planning decisions must be made in accordance with it and
all SDPs and LDPs must be in conformity with it.

SDPs are regional plans that will sit between the NDF and LDPs in certain parts of
Wales, and will deal with issues that cut across a number of local planning authority
(LPA) areas (but are not of national significance). There is currently no statutory duty
to produce SDPs. However the draft NDF document, discussed later in this briefing,
includes a policy that ‘requires SDPs to come forward’.

Purpose of the NDF

At the beginning of the process, the Welsh Government set out the purpose of the
NDF as:

setting out where nationally important growth and infrastructure is needed and
how the planning system can deliver it;

= providing direction for SDPs and LDPs;

= supporting determination of applications under the Developments of National
Significance (DNS) regime;

= supporting national economic, transport, environmental, housing, energy and
cultural strategies and ensuring they can be delivered through the planning
system; and

= sitting alongside Planning Policy Wales (PPW), which sets out the Welsh
Government's national planning policies and will continue to provide the context
for land use planning.

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

The latest version of PPW (Edition 10) was published in December 2018, having
been revised to take account of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act
2015.

Developing the NDF

Work to develop the NDF began in 2016 with the final version currently due to be
published in September 2020. The Welsh Government has published a timeline
showing the various stages involved in developing the NDF. This includes:

= gathering evidence and undertaking engagement to develop the vision,
objectives and options for the NDF (October 2016 - March 2018);

= publishing and consulting on issues, options and the NDF preferred option,
supported by environmental reports and assessments (April 2018 - July 2018);

= considering responses to the preferred option consultation and preparing the
draft NDF (July 2018 - August 2019);

= consulting on the draft NDF, considering responses and preparing a consultation
report (August 2019 - March 2020);

= the National Assembly for Wales considering the draft NDF (April - June 2020);
and

= publishing the final NDF (September 2020).

The Planning Act requires the draft NDF to be considered by the Assembly before
the final NDF is published. The Assembly will have 60 sitting days to consider it. As
set out in the timeline above, the Assembly is due to consider the draft NDF from
April - June 2020.

The Welsh Ministers must take account of any resolution or recommendations
made by the Assembly, or any of its committees, in deciding whether or not the
draft NDF should be amended. The Welsh Ministers must publish a statement
alongside the final NDF outlining how they have had regard to the Assembly’s
resolutions or recommendations.

The Assembly’s Climate Change, Environment and Rural Affairs (CCERA)
Committee scrutinised the NDF preferred option in June 2018. More information
on this can be found later in this briefing.



http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/4/contents/enacted
https://gov.wales/development-plans
https://gov.wales/strategic-development-plans-guidance-local-planning-authorities
https://gov.wales/people-places-future-wales-spatial-plan-update-2008
https://gov.wales/developments-national-significance-dns-guidance
https://gov.wales/developments-national-significance-dns-guidance
http://gov.wales/topics/planning/policy/ppw/?lang=en
https://gov.wales/national-development-framework-timeline
https://www.assembly.wales/en/bus-home/committees/Pages/Committee-Profile.aspx?cid=444
https://www.assembly.wales/en/bus-home/committees/Pages/Committee-Profile.aspx?cid=444

T¢ abed »oed

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

NDF preferred option

The Welsh Government consulted on its preferred option for the NDF between
April and July 2018.

The preferred option consultation document (PDF, 4MB) did not present a draft
version of the NDF, rather it set out a vision, objectives and preferred option to
provide the basis for developing the draft NDF.

The details of the policies the NDF will set for each part of Wales were not outlined
at this stage. However the preferred option did set out a series of nationally
important spatial issues and the potential direction for a number of policy areas.

The Welsh Government has published a summary of responses (PDF, 438KB) to
the consultation.

Vision and objectives

The preferred option consultation document set out the Welsh Government’s vision
of ‘Sustainable Places"

Sustainable Places are the goal of the land use planning system. The
NDF will help deliver sustainable places across Wales by 2040, by
supporting positive placemaking and ensuring that our spatial choices
direct development to the right places, make the best use of resources,
create and sustain accessible, healthy communities, protect our
environment and support prosperity for all.

It also set out four goals within the vision:

= distinctive and natural places;

= productive and enterprising places;

= Qactive and social places; and

= prosperous, distinctive and diversified regions.

In addition, the preferred option consultation document set out 27 NDF objectives.
The objectives and the evidence base behind them can be found in Appendix A -
NDF Issues (PDF, 17MB) which accompanied the consultation document.

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Preferred option

The Welsh Government's preferred option outlined ‘the spatial framework for the
development of the NDF and contained five themes, the first four of which mirror
the structure of the revised PPW:

= placemaking;

= distinctive and natural places;

= productive and enterprising places;
= Qactive and social places; and

= Wales' regions.

Placemaking

The concept of ‘placemaking’ is at the heart of the Welsh Government’s new
approach to planning policy and featured strongly in both the NDF preferred option
and also in the revised PPW. PPW describes placemaking as an inclusive process,
involving all those with an interest in the built and natural environment. It considers
issues at all levels, from the global scale, such as climate change, to the local scale,
such as amenity impact on neighbours.

The NDF preferred option stated that the placemaking theme ‘represents the first
principle through which all spatial choices are first considered. Decisions taken

to support other themes, must first demonstrate that they are compatible with
placemaking.

The preferred option focused on three aspects of placemaking:

= decarbonisation and climate change;
" health and well-being; and
= cohesive communities and the Welsh language.

Senedd Research has published a blog post on placemaking and the Assembly
debated the role of the planning system in placemaking in May 2018.



https://gov.wales/national-development-framework-issues-options-and-preferred-option
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2018-05/180430-consultation-document-issues-options-and-preferred-option.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-06/national-development-framework-summary-of-responses.pdf
https://beta.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2018-04/180430-appendix-a-issues.pdf
https://beta.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2018-04/180430-appendix-a-issues.pdf
https://seneddresearch.blog/2018/05/10/making-sustainable-places-what-role-can-the-planning-system-play/

22 abed xoed

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Distinctive and natural places

Under this theme the consultation document stated that the NDF will identify
national natural resources, areas of environmental risk, and nationally important
landscapes. It also stated the NDF will identify opportunities for expanding these
nationally important areas, for new green infrastructure and new ‘national cultural
development.

Productive and enterprising places

Under this theme the preferred option stated that the NDF will identify locations
where a number of policies will be implemented. While the preferred option did
not go as far as to identify specific places, it set out that the NDF will identify:

= |ocations for new national scale renewable and low-carbon energy generation
and a framework for establishing local community owned renewable energy
schemes;

= important employment, regeneration, mineral and waste areas, existing and
new locations for strategic economic growth sectors (including the foundational
sectors, which include care, tourism, food and retail);

® policies to promote cross-border economic development with adjoining English
regions; and

= important digital and transport infrastructure.

In addition, the preferred option consultation set out that the NDF will interact with
the Wales National Marine Plan, which is expected to be published before the
end of 2019, on issues straddling the marine-terrestrial planning regimes.

Active and social places

This theme set out that the NDF will contain policies linking strategic housing
development to physical and social infrastructure, including active travel (walking
and cycling) infrastructure, and to employment areas, with the aim of providing
better facilities and jobs closer to home. It also stated that ‘policies will identify a
national policy based population and housing projection, which will include an all
Wales range of housing numbers’.

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Wales' regions

Under this theme, the preferred option stated that the NDF will provide direction
for three regions: North Wales, Mid and South West Wales and South East Wales,
and the policy may include a requirement to prepare SDPs. The document also
suggested the NDF could ‘identify regional policy based population and housing
projections for each region, which will include a regional range of housing numbers
for the plan period.

The use of Welsh Government housing figures in developing LDPs has proved
controversial in the past and the Fourth Assembly’'s Environment and Sustainability
Committee undertook a short inquiry into the issue in 2013.

Alternative options

Before arriving at the preferred option of Sustainable Places, the Welsh Government
tested four alternative options. The Welsh Government has said that the preferred
option is hybrid model based on the relative strengths of the four alternative
options. The alternative options were:

= afocus on growth in the strongest market areas in \Wales, providing the
infrastructure required to support this;

= distributing growth and infrastructure across Wales and focusing on
supporting areas in greatest need where markets are weaker,

= delivering decarbonisation and climate change objectives by making these
issues the primary consideration of policies within the NDF; and

= focusing on the sustainable management of natural resources by
emphasising agriculture, forestry, renewable energy, water and tourism as ways
to develop high quality jobs across the whole of Wales.

A benchmark option of not preparing an NDF was also included.



https://gov.wales/marine-planning
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=5273

ez abed yoed

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Committee scrutiny of the preferred option

The CCERA Committee scrutinised the NDF preferred option in June 2018. This
included a public evidence session with planning experts and a stakeholder
workshop.

Following this work, the Committee wrote (PDF, 157KB) to the then Cabinet
Secretary for Energy, Planning and Rural Affairs, Lesley Criffiths, in August 2018,
seeking clarification on a range of issues. The then Cabinet Secretary replied (PDF,
351KB) the following month. The correspondence covered the following themes:

Interaction with other key policies and plans

The Committee was unclear how the NDF preferred option interacted with other
key policies and plans, including:

= PPW -The then Cabinet Secretary responded saying that PPW would be revised
further once the final NDF is published in 2020.

= Wales National Marine Plan (in development) - The then Cabinet Secretary noted
that she was responsible for both the NDF and the marine plan and that there
was a formal and informal programme of liaison between officials working
on both documents. She also stated that the sustainability appraisals for both
documents are assessing how each is supporting integrated decision-making.

Infrastructure Commission

The Committee was also unclear about the relationship between the NDF and the
National Infrastructure Commission for Wales (NICfW). The then Cabinet Secretary
said her officials would be ‘establishing mechanisms to work together’ with the
NICfW.

The purpose of the NICfW is to provide expert impartial advice to the Welsh
Government on long-term strategic economic and environmental infrastructure
needs. It will also consider how these needs interact with social infrastructure, such
as schools and hospitals. The Minister for Housing and Local Government, Julie
James, stated in September 2019 that she intends to expand the NICfW'’s remit
(PDF, 282KB) to include construction methods, finance models and the strategic
infrastructure required to support housing delivery,

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

The NICfW's annual report is expected in November and its first ‘State of the Nation
report’ before the end of 2021.

Note that the Welsh Government also intends for the NDF to complement the
Wales Infrastructure Investment Plan.

Placemaking

The Committee generally supported the concept of placemaking, but expressed
some reservations and suggested there should be more emphasis on people
and communities within the definition, including a focus on homes and jobs. The
then Cabinet Secretary stated that, for consistency, the NDF would use the same
definition of placemaking as PPW.

Three regions

The Committee wanted to understand the reasoning behind choosing the

three regions - North Wales, Mid and South West Wales and South East Wales -
particularly given that research undertaken on behalf of the Welsh Government
recommended four regions.

The then Cabinet Secretary responded saying that the three regions matched
those in the Welsh Government’s Economic Action Plan to ensure a coordinated
approach from government but that she would reflect further on the consultation
responses on this matter. She also said that while there were three regions, it may
be appropriate to have more than one SDP or a combination of an SDP and joint
LDPs within a region.

Strategic Development Plans

The Committee was concerned that SDPs were not coming forward and the
impact this could have on what the NDF has to cover. The then Cabinet Secretary
stated that her preference was for LPAs to prepare SDPs voluntarily. She wrote to
LPAs in December 2017 encouraging them to work together on SDPs and LDPs.



http://record.assembly.wales/Committee/4881
http://senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s78591/Letter%20from%20the%20Cabinet%20Secretary%20for%20Energy%20Planning%20and%20Rural%20Affairs.pdf
http://senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s78593/Letter%20from%20the%20Cabinet%20Secretary%20for%20Energy%20Planning%20and%20Rural%20Affairs.pdf
http://senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s93936/EIS5-24-19P1%20Letter%20from%20the%20Minister%20for%20Housing%20and%20Local%20Government%20to%20the%20Chair.pdf
https://gov.wales/infrastructure-investment
http://orca.cf.ac.uk/104402/
https://gov.wales/prosperity-all-economic-action-plan
https://gov.wales/written-statement-invitation-prepare-joint-local-development-plans-and-strategic-development-plans
https://gov.wales/written-statement-invitation-prepare-joint-local-development-plans-and-strategic-development-plans

7z abed »oed

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Housing figures

The Committee was also concerned that the ‘range of housing numbers’ suggested
in the preferred option could be interpreted as a target and that the language
used in the document suggested a top down rather than bottom up approach.
The Committee had heard from stakeholders who preferred to see housing figures
based on local need and aggregated into regional and national figures. These
figures should also include different housing types to reflect local housing needs,
such as social and affordable housing.

The then Cabinet Secretary responded saying her officials were working on a

new process for establishing the housing figures for the NDF, with the intention of
providing a range of numbers at a range of levels in a consistent way. She added
that this would be in addition to any locally derived numlbers which may inform the
SDP or LDP process.

10

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Draft NDF

The Welsh Government published the draft NDF for consultation on 7 August 2019.
It had intended to launch the consultation in July, however this was delayed due
to the Brecon and Radnorshire Westminster by-election which took place on 1
August. The consultation runs for 14 weeks and closes on 15 November 2019.

Nine different documents were published as part of the consultation:

Draft National Development Framework (PDF, 7MB)
¢ Easy read version (PDF, 39MB)
¢ Young person’s summary (PDF, 4MB)

¢ Consultation document (PDF, 280KB). The consultation document links
to a number of strategies, research papers and other publications that have
informed development of the NDF.

Integrated Sustainability Appraisal report (PDF, 5MB)

¢ Integrated Sustainability Appraisal report: non-technical summary (PDF,
556KB)

Habitats Regulations Assessment report (PDF, 16 MB)

¢ Habitats Regulations Assessment appendix A: rules of thumb (PDF,
12MB)

¢ Habitats Regulations Assessment appendix B: implications for the
Natura 2000 network of priority areas of solar and wind energy
development across Wales (PDF, 16 MB)

In addition, the Welsh Government published an updated Statement of Public
Participation in July 2019.

Draft NDF document
The draft NDF has five chapters:

= Chapter 1 sets out the purpose of the NDF and describes how it fits within wider
Welsh Government policy;

= Chapter 2 outlines key challenges and opportunities facing Wales over the next
20 years;

n


https://gov.wales/written-statement-national-development-framework
https://gov.wales/written-statement-national-development-framework
https://gov.wales/draft-national-development-framework
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/Draft%20National%20Development%20Framework.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/Easy%20Read%20version.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/Young%20people%27s%20summary.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/draft-national-development-framework-consultation-document.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/integrated-sustainability-appraisal-report_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/Integrated%20Sustainability%20Appraisal%20Report%20-%20non-technical%20summary.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/Integrated%20Sustainability%20Appraisal%20Report%20-%20non-technical%20summary.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/habitats-regulations-assessment-report.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/appendix-a-habitats-regulations-assessment-report.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/appendix-a-habitats-regulations-assessment-report.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/appendix-b-habitats-regulations-assessment-report.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/appendix-b-habitats-regulations-assessment-report.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/appendix-b-habitats-regulations-assessment-report.pdf
https://gov.wales/national-development-framework-statement-public-participation
https://gov.wales/national-development-framework-statement-public-participation

Gg abed xoed

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

= Chapter 3 lists the ‘'NDF outcomes’, which are the Welsh Government’s
overarching ambitions for what it wants Wales to be like in 20 years' time;

= Chapter 4 sets out a spatial strategy which includes a policy framework for all-
Wales issues of national importance and a ‘strategic diagram’ (i.e. a high level
map); and

= Chapter 5 sets strategy for nationally important issues in the three regions -
North Wales, Mid and South West Wales and South East Wales.

The draft NDF contains 33 polices, which it sets out in Chapters 4 and 5. A grid at
the end of the document shows the relationship between the NDF policies and the
NDF outcomes they seek to achieve.

The NDF outcomes and policies are described in more detail below, with illustrative
examples of spatial aspects of wider policies linked to the outcomes.

Chapter 3 - NDF outcomes

There are 11 NDF outcomes and they are based on the ‘national planning principles’
and ‘national sustainable placemaking outcomes’ set out in PPW. They are a ‘Wales
where people live"

1. and work in connected, inclusive and healthy places;
2. invibrant rural places with access to homes, jobs and services;

3. in distinctive regions that tackle health and socio-economic inequality through
sustainable growth;

4. in places with a thriving Welsh language;

5. and work in towns and cities which are a focus and springboard for sustainable
growth;

6. in places where prosperity, innovation and culture are promoted;

7. in places where travel is sustainable;

8. in places with world-class digital infrastructure;

9. in places that sustainably manage their natural resources and reduce pollution;
10.in places with biodiverse, resilient and connected ecosystems; and

T1. in places which are decarbonised.

12

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Chapter 4 - Spatial Strategy (Policies 1-15)

The Spatial Strategy identifies three ‘National Growth Areas’ stating that new large-
scale employment and housing growth will occur predominantly in these areas.
The National Growth Areas are:

=  Cardiff, Newport and the Valleys;
= Swansea Bay and Llanelli; and
= Wrexham and Deeside.

Smaller ‘Regional Growth Areas’ are also identified as are intra-urban, regional and
international connections.

The Spatial Strategy also sets out policies for issues of national importance
including renewable energy, affordable housing, mobile communications,
ecological networks and charging infrastructure for electric vehicles. The policies
are summarised below.

From a transport perspective, the Minister for Economy and Transport, Ken Skates,
set out his ‘principles for public transport connectivity’ in a September 2019.
The Minister said ‘| expect these principles to be considered when infrastructure
schemes are being planned and services procured’. With a focus on mass
passenger transport, he said further work is being done on ‘private transport, freight
and other modes’ The statement set out principles at a ‘strategic) regional and
‘urban/local’ level. The principles will form part of the new Wales Transport Strategy
(WTS) which is currently in development. The WTS is identified in the draft NDF as
one of strategies informing the development of the NDF suggesting a relationship
between the public transport principles and the spatial approach set out in the
NDF.

13


https://gov.wales/written-statement-principles-public-transport-connectivity

9 abed oed

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Figure 1: Draft NDF Spatial Strategy

i

£
.

L

f ¢===>

Mid and
South West

Wales

£ <--- -

LI

'
e

Source: Draft NDF (page 25)

r' .-->Q

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Policy 1- Sustainable urban growth - Urban growth should support towns and
cities that are compact and orientated around urban centres, integrated public
transport and active travel networks.

The Welsh Government consulted on a White Paper, improving public transport,
between December 2018 and March 2019 with a Public Transport (Wales) Bill
anticipated in 2020. Where the White Paper consulted on proposals for bus
services, taxi and private hire vehicles and regional local government transport
planning structure, the written statement announcing the consultation outcome
suggests the Bill will have a narrower focus on bus services.

Beyond legislative proposals, the Welsh Government’s transport delivery body,
Transport for Wales (TfW), has a remit to support integrated public transport
including:

= role out of rail services under the new franchise and development of the South
Wales Metro;

= supporting the Welsh Government in its review of bus services and development
of ‘transit orientated development’ around rail stations;

" integrated ticketing and demand responsive services;
= Qgctive travel; and
= provision of electric vehicle charging infrastructure.

In its May 2019 report on the Future Development of Transport for Wales (PDF
687), the Assembly’s Economy, Infrastructure and Skills (EIS) Committee
identified ‘an important role for TfW in helping to coordinate land use and transport
planning in Wales to deliver an integrated transport network’.

The Welsh Government is currently developing a business case for the future
development of TfW's role.

Previously, in June 2018, the EIS Commiittee highlighted the importance of the
link between planning policy and support for active travel. In May 2019, the Deputy
Minister for Economy and Transport, Lee Waters, suggested that the revised

PPW was a ‘big step forward’ in strengthening planning guidance for future
developments to help support ‘an active travel environment..

Policy 2 - Supporting urban centres - Proposals for new public service facilities of
a significant scale should be located in town and city centres. Only in exceptional
circumstances should they be approved elsewhere.

15


https://gov.wales/draft-national-development-framework
https://gov.wales/improving-public-transport
https://gov.wales/written-statement-publication-summary-report-responses-white-paper-improving-public-transport
https://gov.wales/transport-wales-remit-letter-1-april-2019-31-march-2020
http://www.assembly.wales/laid%20documents/cr-ld12511/cr-ld12511-e.pdf
http://www.assembly.wales/en/bus-home/committees/Pages/Committee-Profile.aspx?cid=446
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=20362

12 abed yoed

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Policy 3 - Public investment, public buildings and publicly owned land - The
Welsh Government will work with others to ensure developments of a significant
scale on publicly owned land are located in town and city centres which are
accessible by walking, cycling and public transport. SDPs and LDPs should identify
publicly owned land that is appropriate for development.

Policy 4 - Supporting rural communities - Rural areas are best planned for in
SDPs and LDPs. Growth in rural towns and villages should be appropriate and
proportionate.

Policy 5 - Delivering affordable homes - The Welsh Government will increase
delivery of affordable homes by ensuring that funding is used more effectively.
SDPs and LDPs:

.. should develop strong evidence based policy frameworks to deliver
affordable housing, including setting development plan targets based
on regional estimates of housing need and local assessments. In
response to local and regional needs, they should identify sites for
affordable housing led developments and explore all opportunities to
increase the supply of affordable housing.

The draft NDF uses the Welsh Government’s Estimates of housing need in

Wales by tenure (2018-based) publication which includes a number of different

demographic scenarios. The draft NDF uses the central estimate which suggests

that:

= 714,000 additional homes are needed across Wales by 2038;

= during the first five years (2018/19 to 2022/23), an average of 8.300 new homes
will be required annually, with 57% of them needed in South East Wales, 24% in
Mid and South West Wales and 19% in North Wales; and

= affordability should be the key focus with 47% of new homes during 2018/19 to
2022/23 needing to be affordable housing (social housing or intermediate rent).
This represents an average of 3,900 affordable homes and 4,400 market homes
annually over the five year period.

It is important to note that the estimates of housing need publication states that
these figures come with the caveat that they should not be used as housing
targets, rather they should ‘form a basis of discussion for policy decisions.

Note also that the central estimate is a single figure, rather than the range
of numbers referred to in the NDF preferred option and in the then Cabinet
Secretary’s subsequent correspondence with the CCERA Committee.

16

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

The housing figures are broken down by the three regions later in the draft NDF,
and are summarised in the table below. The draft NDF states that ‘these estimates
provide part of the evidence and context on which housing requirements for SDPs
can be based’ (pages 51, 58 and 66).

Table 1: Draft NDF regional housing figures

Percentage of additional homes
Additional homes in the first five years (2018-19 to
needed by 2038 2022-23) that should be affordable

Draft NDF region

homes
North Wales 19,400 51%
Mid and South West 23400 44%
Wales
South Wales 71.200 48%

Source: Draft NDF (pages 51, 58 and 66), based on the Welsh Government'’s
Estimates of housing need in Wales by tenure (2018-based).

The Welsh Government has a separate target of delivering 20,000 additional
affordable homes during the Fifth Assembly. That target includes 6,000 homes
delivered through the Help to Buy Wales scheme, although those properties would
generally not meet the definition of affordable housing outlined in Technical
Advice Note 2: planning and affordable housing.

The Independent review of affordable housing supply: report was
commissioned by the Welsh Government and published in May 2019. It made a
number of recommendations for action to increase the supply of affordable homes,
all but one of which were accepted by the Welsh Government.

Policy 6 - Planning in Mobile Action Zones - The Welsh Government will identify
‘Mobile Action Zones' focusing on areas of little or no coverage and where there

is demand for new infrastructure. In these zones, LPAs and telecommunications
operators should work together to increase mobile coverage by identifying
locations for new equipment and infrastructure. Considerable weight will be given
to the need to increase coverage, with a presumption in favour for new mobile
telecommunications infrastructure, provided there are no significant adverse
landscape impacts.

17


https://gov.wales/estimates-housing-need-wales-tenure-2018-based
https://gov.wales/estimates-housing-need-wales-tenure-2018-based
https://gov.wales/draft-national-development-framework
https://gov.wales/estimates-housing-need-wales-tenure-2018-based
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-note-tan-2-planning-and-affordable-housing
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-note-tan-2-planning-and-affordable-housing
https://gov.wales/independent-review-affordable-housing-supply-report

gz abed oed

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

The Welsh Government published its Mobile Action Plan in October 2017. The plan
sets out how the Welsh Government will use the devolved levers at its disposal -
such as planning and business rates - as well as working with the mobile phone
industry and Ofcom (the communications regulator) to improve mobile coverage.

Policy 7 - Ultra low emission vehicles - The Welsh Government will work with
the UK Government and others to plan for and implement the roll out of electric
vehicle charging infrastructure, including creating a network of rapid charging
points across Wales.

The draft NDF also states that the Welsh Government will produce a strategy for
electric charging infrastructure, but does not set out a timeframe for doing so.

The Welsh Government told the EIS Committee in evidence to its electrical vehicle
charging infrastructure inquiry that it planned to use TfW to procure charging
infrastructure. This process would involve the Welsh Government setting out its
budget and main objectives, and inviting bids to deliver.

Policy 8 - Strategic framework for biodiversity enhancement and ecosystem
resilience - The Welsh Government will work with others to identify:

= areas which could be safeguarded as ecological networks because of their
importance for climate change adaptation, habitat restoration or creation, or the
provision of ecosystem services; and

= opportunities where strategic green infrastructure could be maximised as part of
development proposals.

These sites should be included in SDPs and LDPs and, in all cases, development
proposals should demonstrate action towards enhancing biodiversity and
ecosystem resilience.

The draft NDF also states that priority areas for action identified in Area Statements
will be material planning considerations and SDPs/LDPs should set out policies to
safeguard these areas.

Natural Resources Wales is currently preparing the first round of Area
Statements. Area Statements are required by the Environment (Wales) Act 2016
and are place-based reports which will identify risks, opportunities and priorities
relating to the sustainable management of natural resources. They are intended
to promote partnership working in each area and will identify specific public
bodies in addressing challenges around natural resource management. The Area
Statements are expected to be published in March 2020.

18

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Policy 9 - National forest - The \Welsh Government will identify sites and
mechanisms to develop a national forest, and will support action to safeguard
proposed locations.

The draft NDF states that a national forest is likely to be dispersed across a number
of locations and will help to achieve the Welsh Government'’s target of planting at
least 2,000 hectares of new woodland annually from 2020, which is set out in its
Woodlands for Wales strategy.

Energy and heating policies (Policies 10-15)

The draft NDF sets out five policies relating to renewable energy and District Heat
Networks. It states that the Welsh Government takes a ‘traffic light based approach’
to policy on large scale wind and solar renewable energy projects:

* Red: Large scale on-shore wind and solar energy development is not appropriate
within National Parks and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONBs).

= Amber: Areas not within the Priority Areas for solar and wind energy. These will
not carry explicit Welsh Government support and proposals will be determined
on their individual merits.

= Green: Priority Areas for solar and wind energy where there is a presumption
in favour of development and where the principle of landscape change is
accepted.

A ‘strategic review of landscape and visual impact’ prepared on behalf of the
Welsh Government, identified the Priority Areas as the most appropriate locations
to accommodate landscape change.

The draft NDF states that brining a critical mass of renewables developments
together in the Priority Areas will build the case for new reinforced grid
infrastructure.

Policy 10 - Wind and solar energy in Priority Areas - The Welsh Government
supports large scale on-shore wind and solar energy development in the Priority
Areas that it has identified. There is a presumption in favour of development for
these schemes and an ‘associated acceptance of landscape change’.

19


https://gov.wales/mobile-action-plan
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=22874
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=22874
https://naturalresources.wales/about-us/area-statements/?lang=en
https://seneddresearch.blog/2019/01/29/sustainable-management-of-natural-resources-and-the-environment-wales-act-2016/
https://gov.wales/woodlands-wales-strategy
https://gov.wales/assessment-shore-wind-and-solar-energy-potential-wales

6¢ abed xoed

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

When determining planning applications for large scale on-shore wind and solar
energy development in Priority Areas, significant weight will be given to the
proposal’s contribution to reducing Wales' greenhouse gas emissions and meeting
decarbonisation and renewable energy targets. Planning applications must also
demonstrate how local social, economic and environmental benefits have been
maximised and adverse impacts on the following have been minimised.:

® |andscape and visual impacts;
= cumulative impacts;
= the setting of National Parks and AONBS;
= visual dominance, shadow flicker, reflected light or noise impacts;
= electromagnetic disturbance to existing communications systems; and
® the following identified protected assets:
¢ archaeological, architectural or historic assets;
¢ nature conservation sites and species; and
¢ natural resources or reserve.

The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 committed the Welsh Government to an

80% emissions reduction by 2050. In June 2019, the Minister for Energy, Planning
and Rural Affairs, Lesley Criffiths, set out the Welsh Government’s plan to bring
forward further regulations, committing Wales to a 95% emissions reduction by
2050, with an ambition to achieve net-zero emissions. In A low carbon Wales, the
Welsh Government sets out a range of policies and proposals relating to renewable
energy, including:

= delivering renewable energy targets;
¢ generating 70% of Wales' electricity consumption from renewables by 2030;

¢ 1GW of renewable electricity capacity in Wales to be locally owned by 2030;
and

¢ renewable energy projects to have at least an element of local ownership
from 2020.

= delivering routes to market for renewable technologies; and
=  exploring potential for investment and new approaches to energy.

The draft NDF states that not all of the area within the Priority Areas is suitable for
renewable energy generation; culminative effects should be taken into account and
Natura 2000 sites are excluded.

20

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Natura 2000 is an EU-wide network of protected areas. It aims to ensure the long-
term survival of Europe’s most valuable and threatened species and habitats, listed
under both the EU Habitats Directive and the EU Birds Directive.

The draft NDF states that guidance will be produced on the development of on-
shore wind and solar energy schemes in Priority Areas. No timeframe is provided
for the development of this guidance.

Implementation of developments within the Priority Areas will be monitored
against the Welsh Government's renewable energy targets.

Policy 11 - Wind and solar energy outside of Priority Areas - Outside of the Priority
Areas, planning applications for large scale wind and solar development must
demonstrate how local social, economic and environmental benefits have been
maximised and that there are no unacceptable adverse effects on the same
criteria listed in Policy 10.

Policy 12 - Wind and solar energy in National Parks and Areas of Outstanding
Natural Beauty - Large scale wind and solar energy development is not acceptable
in these areas.

Policy 13 - Other renewable energy developments - Proposals for other large
scale renewable energy generation will be determined in accordance with the
criteria set out in Policy 11.

The draft NDF states that renewable energy sources other than wind and solar are
supported in principle and the Welsh Government is preparing an ‘Energy Atlas’
to identify opportunities for all types of renewable projects. No timeframe is
provided for the development of the Energy Atlas.

21


https://gov.wales/written-statement-response-committee-climate-changes-net-zero-report
https://gweddill.gov.wales/topics/environmentcountryside/climatechange/emissions/prosperity-for-all-a-low-carbon-wales/?lang=en
https://naturalresources.wales/about-us/our-projects/nature-projects/life-n2k-wales/life-n2k-wales/?lang=en
https://ec.europa.eu/environment/nature/legislation/habitatsdirective/index_en.htm

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Figure 2: Draft NDF Wind and Solar Energy in Priority Areas

Holyhead t“ .
ol
a % —~

@ Wrexham

PRIORITY AREAS
- Solar and Wind Energy

I:l Solar Energy only

@ District Heat Networks

Q Welshpool

data source: Arup

QBuilth Wells

0€ abied oed

7

Fishguard 2

Haverfordwest o’”__, ) ;
nd \§

ilfordéHaven Lo

S A

Pembroke
Dock

Brecon

-]

Barry

Source: Draft NDF (page 42)

Policy 14 - Priority Areas for District Heat Networks - Within Priority Areas
for District Heat Networks, LPAs should identify opportunities for District Heat
Networks and ensure they are integrated within new and existing development.

22

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

District Heat Networks are a method of delivering heating and hot water to
multiple buildings from a central heat source. The draft NDF states that they can be
the most effective way of providing low carbon heat, particularly in urban areas.

Policy 15 - Masterplanning for District Heat Networks - Large scale mixed used
development should, where feasible, have a District Heat Network. Planning
applications for such development should prepare an Energy Masterplan to
establish whether a District Heat Network is the most effective energy supply
option and, where feasible, implement it.

The draft NDF states that, as a minimum, proposals for mixed use developments
of 100 dwellings or more should consider the potential for a District Heat Network,
though there is also potential for them below this threshold.

Chapter 5 - The regions (policies 16-33)

Policy 16 - Strategic policies for regional planning - The Welsh Government
requires SDPs to come forward in each of the three regions. SDPs should establish
for the region:

= 3 spatial strategy;

= 3 settlement hierarchy;

® the housing provision and requirement;
" the gypsy and traveller need;

"= the employment provision;

" the spatial areas for strategic housing and employment growth, renewable
energy and the identification of green belts, green corridors and nationally
important landscapes;

= the location of key services, transport and connectivity infrastructure;

= a3 framework for the sustainable management of natural resources and cultural
assets;

= ecological networks and opportunities for protecting or enhancing the
connectivity of these networks; and

= 3 co-ordinated framework for minerals extraction and the circular economy,
including waste treatment and disposal.

23


https://gov.wales/draft-national-development-framework
https://www.energysavingtrust.org.uk/blog/what-district-heating

T¢ abed xoed

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

SDPs should also shape and be shaped by other regional strategies such as the
Welsh Government's regional economic development plans and the city and
growth deals: North Wales Growth Deal; Swansea Bay City Deal; and the Cardiff
Capital Region City Deal.

The Welsh Government's Economic Action Plan, published in December 2017, set
out plans to develop a regionally-focussed economic development model that
addresses regional inequalities. The action plan states:

We have appointed Chief Regional Officers to lead each of the three
regions. They will be the regions in government, feeding back local
intelligence to tailor our delivery. Critically, they will provide leadership,
coordination, planning and alignment within the region. This will
include bringing partners together to develop and deliver regional
business plans that identify regional priorities and opportunities.
[Senedd Research emphasis]

The Chief Regional Officers will work with others to harness the
advantages of the emerging City and Growth Deals, the new
Development Bank of Wales and Regional Skills Partnerships.

.. This transition to introduce a regionally focussed model of economic
development will bring benefits including:

¢ Joined up economic development planning.
¢ Stronger local and regional supply chains.
¢ Better integrated transport.

¢ Strategic planning on a range of issues from land use to housing to
skills.

¢ Stronger complementary economic and cross border collaboration.

The regional business plans have not been published yet. However, when
questioned on this in EIS Committee in July 2019 the Minister for Economy and
Transport, Ken Skates, stated that ‘frameworks or plans will be published by the end
of this calendar year’.

North Wales (Policies 17-22)

Policy 17 - Wrexham and Deeside - \Wrexham and Deeside are the primary focus
for regional growth and investment. Their role within the North Wales region and
the cross-border areas of Cheshire West and Chester and Liverpool City Region
should be maintained and enhanced.

The SDP and LDPs in the region should recognise Wrexham and Deeside as the
focus for strategic housing and economic growth, essential services and facilities,
advanced manufacturing, transport and digital infrastructure.

24

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

The Welsh Government will work with cross-border authorities to promote
Wrexham and Deeside’s strategic role and ensure key investment decisions support
Wrexham and Deeside and the wider region.

Policy 18 - North Wales coastal settlements - The ‘built up coastal arc’ from
Caernarfon to Deeside is the focus for ‘'managed growth’ The SDP and LDPs in the
region should recognise the role of this corridor as a focus for housing, employment
and key services.

The draft NDF also states that delivering new housing is an important task for the
regional planning process. It presents the Welsh Government'’s central estimates
for the North Wales region as 19,400 additional homes by 2038. During the first
five years (2018-19 to 2022-23), 51% of the additional homes needed should be
affordable homes.

Policy 19 - Green belts in north Wales - The SDP should establish green belts to
manage urban form and growth, particularly around Wrexham and Deeside and in
the context of the existing green belt in Cheshire West and Chester.

Policy 20 - Port of Holyhead - The Welsh Government will work with port operators
and others to ensure the port’s strategic gateway role is maintained and enhanced.
This includes improving capacity to accommodate cruise ships. New development
around the port should be managed carefully so as not to compromise future
change and expansion.

Stena Line and the Welsh Government developed a Port of Holyhead: Masterplan
refresh in 2018. However, the document has not been published.

Policy 21 - Transport links to north west England - The Welsh Government will
work with local and regional authorities in north Wales and north west England

to ensure transport investments, including in the North Wales Metro, strengthen
cross-border transport links. The SDP and LDPs should support improved transport
links between north Wales, Chester, Liverpool and Manchester, and plan growth

to maximise the opportunities arising from better regional connectivity.

Alongside plans for the North Wales Metro, in February 2019 the Welsh
Government announced that an updated Memorandum of Understanding had
been signed with English sub-national body Transport for the North to strengthen
cross-border transport links. The agreement includes establishment of a “West and
Wales Transport Forum’ to bring together key stakeholders including the Welsh and
UK Governments, and Transport for the North.

25


https://gov.wales/progress-north-wales-growth-deal
https://www.swanseabaycitydeal.wales/
https://www.cardiffcapitalregion.wales/
https://www.cardiffcapitalregion.wales/
https://gov.wales/prosperity-all-economic-action-plan
http://record.assembly.wales/Committee/5484
https://gov.wales/north-east-wales-metro-moving-north-wales-forward
https://gov.wales/agreement-boost-transport-connectivity-north-wales-and-north-england
https://gov.wales/agreement-boost-transport-connectivity-north-wales-and-north-england
https://transportforthenorth.com/

Z¢s abed )oed

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Policy 22 - North west Wales and energy - North west Wales is a location for
new energy development and investment. Such development should support
communities, provide jobs and investment in training and skills, and work with
universities and businesses across the region and north west England to co-
ordinate and maximise new investment.

In determining any applications for nuclear energy generating stations,
consideration should be given to the need for further non-renewable energy
generation, their contribution towards Wales energy mix, their impacts on the
natural and historic environment and their economic benefits.

The draft NDF also affirms the Welsh Government’s support for the North West
Nuclear Arc initiative, which is a shared vision (with the UK Government, universities
and the National Nuclear Laboratory) for realising the benefits of the nuclear
power sector for local communities. The Arc stretches from north Wales through
Cheshire, the Sheffield City Region, Greater Manchester and Lancashire, to Cumobria.
The key sites in north Wales are Wylfa and Trawsfynydd.

The draft NDF also notes the Anglesey Energy Island Programme.
Mid and West Wales (Policies 23-26)

Policy 23 - Swansea Bay and Llanelli - Swansea Bay and Llanelli will be the
main focus for regional scale growth and investment. The SDP and LDPs should
recognise Swansea Bay and Llanelli as the focus for strategic growth, essential
services and facilities, transport and digital infrastructure.

The Welsh Government will promote Swansea Bay and Llanelli’s strategic role and
ensure key investment decisions support it and the wider region.

Policy 24 - Regional centres - Carmarthen, Llandrindod Wells, Newtown,
Aberystwyth and the four ‘haven towns’ (Milford Haven, Haverfordwest, Pemlbroke
and Pemlbroke Dock) will be the focus for managed growth. The SDP and

LDPs should recognise the roles of these towns as being a focus for housing,
employment and key services.

The Welsh Government'’s central estimates for the Mid and West Wales region
indicate that 23,400 additional homes will be needed by 2038. During the first
five years (2018-19 to 2022-23), 44% of the additional homes needed should be
affordable homes.

26

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Policy 25 - Haven Waterway - The Welsh Government supports continued
operations and future development at Haven Waterway in south Pembrokeshire.
The SDP and LDPs should support its growth and seek to maximise the benefits it
provides to the region and Wales as a whole. The Welsh Government will work with
others to support appropriate new development.

Policy 26 - Swansea Bay Metro - The Welsh Government supports the
development of the Swansea Bay Metro and will work with others to enable
its delivery. The SDP and LDPs should support the scheme and plan growth to
mMaximise opportunities arising from better regional connectivity.

The Welsh Government has provided funding from its Local Transport Fund to
Swansea City Council to support development of the business case for a south west
Wales metro.

South East Wales (Policies 27-33)

Policy 27 - Cardiff - Cardiff will retain and extend its role as the primary national
centre for culture, sport, leisure, media, the night time economy and finance.

The Welsh Government supports ‘regional development which addresses the
opportunities and challenges arising from Cardiff's geographic location and its
functions as a capital city. The Welsh Government supports Cardiff’s status as an
‘internationally competitive city’ and a UK core city.

Policy 28 - Newport - Newport is the focus for regional growth and investment
and should play an increased strategic role in the region. The SDP and LDPs should
recognise Newport as a focus for strategic housing and economic growth. essential
services and facilities, transport and digital infrastructure.

Development in the wider region should be managed to support Newport's
growth. The Welsh Government will work with authorities within the region and in
England to promote Newport's strategic role and ensure key investment decisions
in Wales and England support Newport and the wider region.

Policy 29 - The Heads of the Valleys - There should be co-ordinated regeneration
and investment in the Heads of the Valleys area to increase prosperity and address
social inequalities. The Welsh Government will work with others to support
investment, including in the manufacturing sector, and to ensure a regional
approach is taken to addressing the issues.

27


http://www.nwnucleararc.co.uk/
http://www.nwnucleararc.co.uk/
https://www.nnl.co.uk/
https://www.anglesey.gov.uk/en/Business/Energy-Island%E2%84%A2-Isle-of-Anglesey-North-Wales/What-is-Energy-Island%E2%84%A2.aspx
https://businesswales.gov.wales/enterprisezones/zones/haven-waterway
https://gov.wales/atisn12995
https://www.corecities.com/

e¢ abed yoed

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

The SDP and LDPs across the region must identify how they can support the Heads
of the Valleys area to deliver greater prosperity, support regeneration and improve
well-being.

The Welsh Government'’s central estimates for the South East Wales region indicate
that 71,200 additional homes will be needed by 2038. During the first five years
(2018-19 to 2022-23), 48% of the additional homes needed should be affordable
homes.

Policy 30 - Green belts in south east Wales - The SDP must identify green belts to
manage urban form and growth in south east Wales, particularly around Newport
and the eastern part of the region. This should consider the relationship of any new
green belts with the green belt around Bristol.

Policy 31 - Growth in sustainable transit orientated settlements - Development
and growth in the region should be focused in places with good active travel and
public transport connectivity. Development should be focused on land close to
existing and committed new mainline railway and Metro stations.

The SDP and LDPs should plan growth to maximise the opportunities arising from
better regional connectivity. The Welsh Government will work with others to enable
delivery of the South Wales Metro.

Policy 32 - Cardiff Airport - The airport should develop and grow. Proposals to
expand capacity, to provide new and improved airport facilities and passenger
services, and to improve transport links to the airport are supported. Improvements
to accessibility are supported and should prioritise a modal shift from the private
car to sustainable transport modes including public transport.

Development of land adjacent to Cardiff Airport which is part of the Enterprise
Zone is supported where it supports the functions of the airport. New development
around the airport should be managed to ensure future expansion and change at
the airport is not constrained.

Cardiff Airport has published Cardiff Airport 2040 Masterplan setting out
‘ambitious plans for growth over the next 20 years to become a key gateway to the
UK.

Policy 33 - Valleys Regional Park - The SDP and LDPs should embed the principles
of a new Valleys Regional Park into their planning frameworks. The Welsh
Government will work with others to support the regional park and maximise
opportunities for new development.

28

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Integrated Sustainability Appraisal

The draft NDF has been subject to an Integrated Sustainability Appraisal (ISA), the
report for which has been published in full (PDF, 5MB) and as a non-technical
summary (PDF, 556KB). The ISA aims to satisfy the requirements of EU Strategic
Environmental Assessment (SEA) Directive and includes a number of other
statutory and non-statutory assessments.

It is an iterative process that assesses the emerging NDF against a framework of 17
social, economic, cultural and environmental objectives issues. The ISA report on
the draft NDF draws the following conclusions:

= the Spatial Strategy would be expected to result in predominantly positive
sustainability impacts, however focusing development in the three National
Growth Areas could increase flood risk in these areas, though this could be
mitigated;

" the policies would be expected to have neutral or positive effects on the social
and economic ISA objectives which are related to improving education, health,
economy, employment, connectivity, social cohesion and housing;

= more mixed impacts were identified for the objectives relating to protecting the
natural environment, including energy and greenhouse emissions, air quality,
flood risk, water, landscapes and townscapes, cultural heritage, biodiversity and
geodiversity as well as natural resources; and

= significant negative effects in the long-term were identified for policies 20 and
32 as they would encourage expansion the of Port of Holyhead and Cardiff
Airport respectively, both of which would be expected to lead to increased
greenhouse gas emissions as a result of increased shipping and air shipping
movements.

The ISA report makes the following recommendations:

= policies 20 (Port of Holyhead) and 32 (Cardiff Airport) need more detailed
analysis to understand their contribution to emissions which could then inform
measures to mitigate these impacts;

= the NDF should maximise opportunities to strengthen connectivity between
rural areas and more isolated communities with essential services and amenities;

" there should be increased provision of green infrastructure to enhance the
natural environment, facilitate walking and cycling routes and provide a range of
ecosystem services;

29


https://gov.wales/south-wales-metro
https://www.cardiff-airport.com/masterplan2040/
https://gov.wales/valleys-regional-park-prospectus
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/integrated-sustainability-appraisal-report_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/Integrated%20Sustainability%20Appraisal%20Report%20-%20non-technical%20summary.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/Integrated%20Sustainability%20Appraisal%20Report%20-%20non-technical%20summary.pdf
https://ec.europa.eu/environment/eia/sea-support.htm
https://ec.europa.eu/environment/eia/sea-support.htm

7€ abed Yoed

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

Draft National Development Framework: Research Briefing

= the NDF could include greater focus on managing flood risk and how this
will change as a result of climate change, particularly as development is to be
focused in areas where there is already extensive flood risk such as Newport,
Cardiff and Deeside;

= the NDF could consider the impact of dense development in urban areas on air
quality more closely; and

= development in town and city centres could be required to enhance existing
townscape character through high-quality design measures.

The ISA report also proposes a draft framework to monitor the impact of the final
NDF. The indicators to be monitored have yet to confirmed and the framework will
be published alongside the final ISA report.

Habitats Regulations Assessment

The draft NDF has also been subject to a Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA).

The purpose of an HRA is to avoid a plan or project having a significant effect on
European designated sites, either alone or in combination with other plans or
projects.

The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 implement the
EU Habitats Directive and the EU Birds Directive. The Regulations apply the HRA
process to Natura 2000 sites, which are designated under the two Directives, and
also to Ramsar sites.

The HRA report for the draft NDF ‘screened in’ 20 policies for more detailed
assessment (called ‘appropriate assessment’). The conclusions are set out in Table 4
of the HRA report (PDF, 16 MB). In summary the report concluded:

= |t is difficult at this ‘very high-level stage to be clear how the polices in the draft
NDF may affect European designated sites, but early avoidance of issues has
been a key element throughout the process for developing the NDF.

= None of the policies in the draft NDF is actively directing development in a way
that the impacts could not be avoided or mitigated at the lower-tier (SDP/LDP)
level.

= Policy 8 (Strategic framework for biodiversity enhancement and ecosystem
resilience) provides an overarching safeguard to which the other policies, as well
as those in lower-tier plans, will be required to adhere. This is on this assumption
that policy 8 will indirectly provide protective buffering for European designated
sites.

30

Likewise, policy 16 (Strategic policies for regional planning) also requires
ecological networks to identified in lower-tier plans. Again the assumption is that
this will provide protective buffering for European designated sites.

Policies 10, 11, 13 (renewable energy generation), 20 (Port of Holyhead), 21
(Transport links to north west England), 22 (North west Wales and energy), 25
(Haven Waterway), 26 (Swansea Bay Metro) and 32 (Cardiff Airport) all relate

to types of development that typically have a higher likelihood of leading to
adverse effects on European protected sites. This is because of their size and
scale and because they tend to be more likely to be located away from existing
urban areas, and/or on the coast, where the risk of conflicting with European
sites is higher. The HRA report recommends specific mitigation measures.

3]


https://seneddresearch.blog/2017/12/05/new-publication-the-planning-series-16-habitats-regulations-assessment/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1012/contents/made
https://www.ramsar.org/
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2019-08/habitats-regulations-assessment-report.pdf

P

yevT o




Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru

Pwyllgor yr Economi, Seilwaith a Sgiliau Ag e n d a I te m 3 . 1

National Assembly for Wales
Economy, Infrastructure and Skills Committee

James Price
Chief Executive
Transport for Wales

11 November 2019
Dear James,

Thank you for providing the Committee with a copy of your Risk Management Plan, in
response to Recommendation 6 of the Committee’s March 2019 report on Autumn Rail
Disruption. The Committee is also grateful for further information provided following our
recent visit to the Canton Depot about the fitting of Wheel Slide Protection to trains in the
Welsh fleet. This correspondence and the Risk Management Plan were noted by the
Committee at today's meeting.

The Risk Management Plan is helpful in explaining TfW's approach to mitigating risks
associated with planned changes to the fleet, and lists the 9 new and cascaded fleet,
demonstrating the range of different rolling stock to be used to serve passengers in Wales.
The Committee is also aware of the ongoing operational issues relating to the delay in
deploying the new Class 230/Class 769 trains, and the request to the Department for
Transport to keep Pacers operational for longer. It will probably not surprise you to know
that Members' casework also still includes significant numbers of complaints from
passengers experiencing unacceptable levels of delays, cancellations, overcrowding and
short formations.

In light of the range of rolling stock being deployed, on a moving timescale, currently it
can be quite difficult for non-technical experts to understand the whole picture of rail
delivery - i.e. the different types of trains, their capacity, and when and how TfW plans to
deploy this rolling stock on the various lines to increase capacity and improve passenger
experience. It would be very helpful therefore if TfW was able to provide the following
details of your current and future rolling stock plans, ideally presented graphically. We
would welcome the following information:

e The number of trains of each type, including how this is expected to change over
time;
e Passenger capacity for each train and in total, and how this changes over time;

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 TNA Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 TNA
SeneddESS@cynulliad.cyrmru en dd?S asse ]?/y.wales
www.cynulliad.cymru/SeneddESS P?@\gjés e&g\@i SeneddEIS

0300 200 6565 0300 200 6565



e Details of the extent to which each train has been refurbished, has Wheel Slide
Protection and whether it complies with PRM TSI regulations;

e When each type of train is expected to enter and exit service (noting any uncertainty
around this);

e The lines and services which the trains are, or will be, deployed on, and how total
capacity on each line and service changes over time;

We obviously understand that some operational detail will be subject to change, and that
timeframes for implementation will carry certain caveats in order to manage customer
expectations. Equally, the Committee has an important role to play in scrutinising TfW's
plans on behalf of the travelling public, and want to be in as strong a position as possible
to understand those plans for rolling stock management.

The clerking team will be happy to discuss this request further with you or your colleagues
if that would be helpful.

Thank you again for your continued open and cooperative engagement with the
Committee in carrying out its scrutiny role, and we look forward to seeing you in future
Committee meetings.

Kind regards,

u:r(// %ﬂj{
Russell George AM

Chair

Economy, Infrastructure and Skills Committee

Pack Page 38




Agenda Iltem 5

Consultation Response Form

Your name Professor Vincent Goodstadt

Your address I
I
[
[
Preferred contact details ]
(email/phone/post)
Organisation (if applicable) UK2070 Commission

Pack Page 39



1. NDF Outcomes (chapter 3)

The NDF has proposed 11 Outcomes as an ambition of where we want to be in 20
years’ time.

e Overall, to what extent do you agree or disagree the 11 Outcomes are a realistic
vision for the NDF?

Neither
Agree agree nor  Disagree
disagree

% ] ]

Strongly
agree

Strongly Don’t No
disagree know opinion

e To what extent do you agree with the 11 Outcomes as ambitions for the NDF?

Agree with Agree with
most of some of
them them

X ] ]

e If you disagree with any of the 11 Outcomes, please tell us why:

Agree with

Agree with : No
all of them Don’t know

none of them opinion

All these goals are highly desirable. The challenge is that they are expressed as
outcomes but without specific metrics (except in a few cases) by which one will be
confident that they have been achieved.

It is not clear whether the overall outcome desired would result in Wales still
having the same relative position in the UK economy or make a greater
contribution and help tackle the deep-rooted spatial imbalances in the UK which
affect Wales as much as any part of the UK

Pack Page 40



2. Spatial Strategy (policies 1 -4)

The NDF spatial strategy is a guiding framework for where large-scale change and
nationally important developments will be focused over the next 20 years.

e To what extent do you agree or disagree with the spatial strategy and key
principles for development in...

Neither
Strongly agree . Strongly  Don’t No
agree Sllee nor Blisdates disagree = know opinion
disagree
Urban
areas
X
(Policies D
1,2&3)
Rural
areas ] X
(Policy 4)

¢ If you have any comments on the spatial strategy or key principles for
development in urban and rural areas, please tell us:

No opinion is given on the specific components of spatial strategy since this would
be inappropriate given the UK2070 Commission’s remit. Dependent on
clarification of the extent to which the rebalancing of the UK economy that is
needed (see the UK2070 Commission’s two reports http://uk2070.org.uk/ ) is
accepted as part of the future for Wales, then the spatial strategy might need to
anticipate a higher level of growth for Wales, than trend based assumptions would
require.

The UK2070 Commission has had explicit regard to the pioneering approach of
the Welsh Government to developing policies for promoting the foundational
economy. It is not clear as the extent to which this has been built into the spatial
strategy.

On an additional point, the draft NDF rightly highlights the need for it to have
regard to the challenge of climate change. The emphasis in the document is
mostly on addressing the threats that it poses for Wales. The UK2070
Commission, in its own thinking , has done likewise but has also stressed the
point that the shift to a zero-carbon economy will also create new opportunities in
the new economy that will be required to service Wales and the UK (e.g. not just
in energy production but also the manufacturing based required to service it)

Pack Page 41



3. Affordable Housing (policy 5)

The NDF sets out the approach for providing affordable housing, encouraging local
authorities, social landlords, and small and medium-sized construction and building
enterprises to build more homes.

¢ To what extent do you agree or disagree with the approach to increasing
affordable housing?

Neither

Strongly : Strongly Don’t No
agree liss Sopzzuln | Rl es disagree know opinion
disagree
L] L] L] L] L] L] X

o |[f you disagree, in what other ways can the NDF approach the delivery of
affordable housing?

See above : it is however recognised that the issue of affordable housing is a key
issue

4. Mobile Action Zones (policy 6)

e To what extent do you agree or disagree the identification of mobile actionzones
will be effective in encouraging better mobile coverage?

Neither ;
gy Agree agree nor  Disagree Strongly 250y I_Vq
agree disagree disagree know opinion
X 0 L] L] L] L] L]

e If you disagree, in what other ways can the NDF improve mobile phone coverage
in the areas which currently have limited access?

The UK2070 Commission has recognised that the roll out of mobile coverage is
potentially compounding the patterns of inequality in the UK , especially in remoter
and rural areas. In its second report it placed this as a priority for action. Therefore
without commenting on the detail in the NDF, the principle behind it is supported

Pack Page 42



5. Low Emission Vehicles (policy 7)

e To what extent do you agree or disagree that policy 7 will enable and encourage
the roll-out of charging infrastructure for ultra-low emission vehicles?

Neither %
S;'gr'gy Agree  agree nor Disagree ;g:gr%lé l[()::wl; OP%?O”
disagree

e If you disagree, in what other ways can the NDF enable and encourage the roll-
out of charging infrastructure for ultra-low emission vehicles?

The UK2070 Commission accepts the critical need to address climate change
(see earlier comment 2). The specific raft of policies to do so need to be tailored to
local circumstances to ensure a just transition that helps to address inequalities
and not reinforce them. The transition to electric vehicles needs to have regard to
this and also to the need to put even greater emphasis on public transport (see
second report of Uk2070 Commission)

6. Green Infrastructure (policies 8 & 9)

e To what extent do you agree or disagree with the approach to maintaining and
enhancing biodiversity and ecological networks?

Neither :
S;rornegely Agree agree nor Disagree (?itsrgngelye/ I?r?:mf 5 ,i\rl;l?on
9 disagree 9 P
[ ] X

The UK2070 Commission accepts the need to support ecosystem services but
does not comment on the detail.

It is however noted that the level of spatial analysis that has been applied to
renewable energy (and the associated policy map) could also be applied to
forestry (as was done in the past in the work in Scotland and by others on a
indicative forestry and woodland framework),

The Uk2070 Commission has also highlighted the value of integrate the rural and

urban green infrastructure agenda (e.g. through the promotion of National Urban
Parks

Pack Page 43



7. Renewable Energy and District Heat Networks (policies 10-15)

e To what extent do you agree or disagree with the NDF’s policies to lower carbon
emissions in Wales using...

Neither
Strongly Agree agree Disagree S_trongly Don’t Nq
agree nor disagree know opinion
disagree
Large scale X
wind and
solar
developments
District heat &
networks

e If you disagree with the NDF’s approaches to green infrastructure, renewable
energy or district heat networks, what alternative approaches should we consider
to help Wales to enhance its biodiversity and transition to a low carbon
economy?

See above

8. The Regions (policy 16)

e To what extent do you agree or disagree with the principle of developing
Strategic Development Plans prepared at a regional scale?

Neither ,
S;rorr;gely Agree agree nor Disagree (?iggngi ngmf o ,i\r,;l?on
g disagree g P
X
[ ] [ ]

Pack Page 44



The NDF identifies three overall regions of Wales, each with their own distinct
opportunities and challenges. These are North Wales, Mid and South West Wales, and
South East Wales.

The UK2070 Commission has highlighted the need for national Policy frameworks
to be underpinned by clear sub-national strategic policies which allow local
interpretation of more general national policy goals, deal with issues that are wider
interdependencies that can be dealt with by individual and need a collaborative
and agreed approach. The UK2070 Commission however does not wish to
comment on the detailed specifics for the subregions. It therefore makes no
comment below on the following questions

9. North Wales (policies 17-22)

We have identified Wrexham and Deeside as the main focus of development in North
Wales. A new green belt will be created to manage the form of growth. A number of
coastal towns are identified as having key regional roles, while we support growth and
development at Holyhead Port. We will support improved transport infrastructure in the
region, including a North Wales Metro, and support better connectivity with England.
North West Wales is recognised as having potential to supply low-carbon energy on a
strategic scale.

e To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposed policies and
approach for the North Region?

Neither :
S;rorr;gely Agree agree nor Disagree (?itsrgn?elye/ Z?:Mf 5 Ii\rI;l?on
9 disagree 9 P
[ ] X

10. Mid and South West Wales (policies 23-26)

Swansea Bay and Llanelli is the main urban area within the region and is our preferred
location for growth. We also identify a number of rural and market towns, and the four
Haven Towns in Pembrokeshire, as being regionally important. The haven Waterway is
nationally important and its development is supported. We support proposals for a
Swansea Bay Metro.

¢ To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposed policies and
approach for the Mid and South West Region?

Neither :
S;rorr;%Iy Agree agree nor Disagree ;tsr:n,%li Z;):‘; 0 ,i\fl;l?on
9 disagree 9 P

Pack Page 45 L X



11. South East Wales (policies 27-33)

In South East Wales we are proposing to enhance Cardiff’s role as the capital and secure
more sustainable growth in Newport and the Valleys. A green belt around Newport and
eastern parts of the region will support the spatial strategy and focus development on
existing cities and towns. Transport Orientated Development, using locations benefitting
from mainline railway and Metro stations, will shape the approach to development across
the region. There is support for the growth and development of Cardiff Airport.

¢ To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposed policies and
approach for the South East Region?

Neither

Strongly . Strongly Don’t No
agree ltlias Bdicc oy BEcdi disagree know opinion
9 disagree 9 P
Ll L L L L] Ll X

If you have any comments about the NDF’s approach or policies to the three regions,
please tell us. If you have any alternatives, please explain them and tell us why you
think they would be better.

12. Integrated Sustainability Appraisal

As part of the consultation process, an Integrated Sustainability Appraisal (ISA) was
conducted to assess the social, economic and environmental impacts of a plan. The
report identified a number of monitoring indicators, including health, equalities, Welsh
language, the impact on rural communities, children’s rights, climate change and
economic development.

¢ Do you have any comments on the findings of the Integrated Sustainability
Appraisal Report? Please outline any further alternative monitoring indicators
you consider would strengthen the ISA.

NO COMMENT ON THIS QUESTION
13. Habitats Regulations Assessment
As part of the development of the NDF, a Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) was

undertaken. The purpose of ﬂﬁaURPang% is to identify, assess and address any
‘significant effects’ of the plan on sites such as Special Areas of Conservation and Special



Protection Areas for birds.

e Do you have any comments on the Habitats Regulations Assessment report?

NO COMMENT ON THIS QUESTION

14. Welsh Language

We would like to know your views on the effects that the NDF would have on the Welsh

language, specifically on opportunities for people to use Welsh and on treating the Welsh
language no less favourably than English.

e What effects do you think there would be? How could positive effects be
increased, or negative effects be mitigated?

NO COMMENT ON THIS QUESTION

Please also explain how you believe the proposed NDF could be formulated or changed
So as to have:

l.  positive effects or increased positive effects on opportunities for people to use

Pack Page 47



the Welsh language and on treating the Welsh language no less favourably than
the English language, and

Il.  no adverse effects on opportunities for people to use the Welsh language and on
treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English language.

NO COMMENT ON THIS QUESTION

15. Further comments

e Are there any further comments that you would like to make on the NDF, orany
alternative proposals you feel we should consider?

16. Areyou...?
Providing your own personal response []
Submitting a response on behalf of an organisation X

Responses to the consultation will be shared with the National
Assembly for Wales and are likely to be made public, on the D
internet or in areport. If you would prefer your response to
remain anonymous, please tick here

Pack Page 48




UK

The following notes set out a brief response on the following three questions listed below

Answers to Key Issues: UK 2070 Commission Response

1. How does the draft NDF support regional/economic development and connectivity?
The draft NPF clearly seeks to develop the global competitiveness. of Wales. This is consistent with the
overall inquiry by the UK2070 Commission to build fairer and stronger nations and regions across the
UK The work of the UK2070 Commission however has highlighted the fact that this requires a change
in policies if we are to tackle the growing inequalities in across the UK and the need. This includes the
need for all areas including Wales to play a key role in the rebalancing of the UK economy, and to
make it fairer and stringer.

The UK2070 Commission has therefore proposed seven key interventions including a Connectivity
Revolution between cities, within the main urban concentrations and beyond to remoter areas. The
Draft NPF reflects these connectivity goals. It has been proposed that the delivery of this agenda needs
a new fiscal context with the establishment of a £10bn. / year UK Renewal Fund, and a lifting of the
current cap on infrastructure spending to 3% of GDP.

2. How does the draft NDF support City growth deals?
National development frameworks are seen as providing a more systematic context for investment
funding, which has been sought through the City Deal process. The UK2070 Commission has drawn
attention to the limitation of the bidding-based approach of city deals and has argued that a more
systematic devolution of power and resourcing locally is required. This is also seen as being related to
the need for more general changes to enable local access to funding, (see below question 4)

3. What can be learnt from overseas examples?
Experience from other nations suggest that the scope of a national spatial framework should be limited
to those matters which can only be or are best defined at a national level. From international
experience these include:

e Setting out a consistent basis for sectoral programmes of investment, for example, scales of
economic and demographic change.

e Identifying priorities which are critical to the restructuring of the nation and the opening up of
opportunities of national significance for example, new towns, community regeneration, industrial
sectors or conservation priorities.

e Requiring cross-boundary action where it is in the national interest, for example in terms of
metropolitan regions and along key trans-regional development corridors, as well cross-boundary
collaboration with the nations of the UK (e.g. between Wales and the South West of England) and
internationally with the Republic of Ireland and France/Belgium.

The content of a national spatial framework would vary from time to time but in general it could

typically include:

e (Climate Change - Priority actions to respond to the climate change emergency including a
renewable energy framework;

e Competitiveness - A new urban policy to support the global role of London as a trading centre,
and the major towns and cities in delivering Industry 4.0;

e Quadlity of Life and Places - Priorities for raising the standards of services, environmental and
accessibility for communities at risk including ‘overlooked or excluded places’ and remoter
communities;

e Land Use and Environmental Management - To support the vital national ecosystems and
indicative priorities for agricultural and forestry, national heritage assets and nature recovery;

e Infrastructure - An integrated infrastructure strategy to serve all cities, towns and regions,
including transport, energy and the national Green-Blue networks.

Pack Page 49



4. Are there any other matters anything from the work of the 2070 Commission that can inform the

discussion on the NDF?

e The UK2070 Commission set out the case for change in the balance of economic development
across the UK. The current trajectory is one of increasing concentration of development and
investment in London and the Wider South East of England — a situation in which all areas are
losing out in social and environmental terms. Its analysis demonstrated that if business carries
on as usual the imbalance and inequalities in the UK will get worse. The UK2070 Commission has
drawn attention to the role of national development frameworks internationally as a key tool in
delivering a national agenda (in the UK this would be to rebalance the economy). It has
therefore been supportive of the Welsh NDF, and proposed that a national spatial strategy for
England is required (see its second report)

e The Uk2070 Commission has set out the case for change in its First Report; this has been
developed into the following seven key proposals in its Second Report.

O

Responding to the climate change by locally sensitive adaptation policies and by harnessing
economic opportunities that will energy e.g. in productivity capacity

Leading a connectivity revolution (e.g. in the connectivity between south Wales
and the other major centres of the UK economy)

Leading the Digital Revolution by developing centres of excellence that
complement the Golden Triangle of SE England and make the UK economy more
resilient

Building up the Foundations of local economies drawing particularly on the experience of
the Welsh Government

A systematic Framework for Devolution and decentralization of powers and
resources

Shaping and aligning the Future through National Spatial Plans for all four nations, which
should be linked to their subnational strategic frameworks;

and

Accessing new funding sources, including the review of ‘greenbook’ type criteria, the
sharing of the uplift in land and property values and access to private financing.

14* November 2019

Pack Page 50


https://drive.google.com/file/d/1DaPlONpLXwxS1lE2kLu3aQVkOQEmFLwB/view
http://uk2070.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/FINAL_SECOND_REPORT.pdf

Agenda ltem 7

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 51



	Agenda
	1 Briefing on the Welsh Government Draft National Development Framework 2020-2040
	EIS(5)-30-19(P2) General Research Briefing on Draft NDF
	_Hlk20408727
	_Hlk20481793
	_Hlk20816568
	_GoBack
	Introduction
	Background
	Purpose of the NDF
	Developing the NDF

	NDF preferred option
	Vision and objectives
	Preferred option

	Committee scrutiny of the preferred option
	Draft NDF
	Draft NDF document
	Chapter 3 - NDF outcomes
	Chapter 4 - Spatial Strategy (Policies 1-15)
	Chapter 5 – The regions (policies 16-33)

	Integrated Sustainability Appraisal
	Habitats Regulations Assessment



	3.1 Letter from Chair to Transport for Wales re Rolling stock
	5 Draft National Development Framework for Wales 2020-2040 - UK2070 Commission
	EIS(5)-30-19(P4A) Further evidence from Professor Goodstadt

	7 Scoping Paper: Degree Apprenticeships



